
Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 1 of 7 
 

MINUTES 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 

February 18, 2014 
10:00 A.M. 

 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT CENTER 

101 CIVIC WAY, LAUGHLIN, NEVADA 
 
 
Members Present: Public Works 
  
 Fred Doten 
 Shawn Escarzaga 
 Jim Bodley   
 Steve Collins (Excused) 
 Jim DeWoody 
 Eric Hoss 
 John Pantages  
 Jon Safranek  
     
Other Attendees:  
 Tom Bartelmy, Public Safety Committee 
 Julie Fairman, Laughlin Times Reporter 
 Barbara Bodley, Laughlin Citizen 
 
Prior to Opening the Meeting Fred Doten introduced the two new members Eric Hoss and John 
Pantages.  He introduced the old members present and then asked the two new members to provide 
a little information on their background.  Once this was completed, Fred Doten called the meeting to 
order. 
   
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Fred Doten called the meeting to order 10:04  AM as a quorum was present 

B. The meeting was conducted in conformance with the Nevada Open Meeting Law. 

C. Agenda items may be taken out of order if deemed necessary. 

D. The Public Works Committee may combine two or more agenda items for 
consideration. 

E. The Public Works Committee may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion 
relating to an item at any time. 

2. ORGANIZATIONAL ITEMS 

A. Approval of the February 18, 2014 Agenda.  

Shawn Escarzaga moved and Jim Bodley seconded the approval of the agenda.  
Motion carried on a vote of 7 to 0. 

B. Approval of the Minutes of the January 21, 2014 Meeting Minutes. 



Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Shawn Escarzaga moved and Jon Safranek seconded the approval of the minutes.   
The motion carried 7 to 0. 

3. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

There were no comments from the Public reference any of the agenda items. 

4. COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

A. Prior to getting into the agenda items, Fred Doten noted that the briefing 
provided by NDOT in January was outstanding and that he would try to get them 
down at least once a year to discuss on-going events.  He did note that he had 
not received any answers to the two questions that had been asked of Mario 
Gomez.  He said he did send the question on the bridge money to 
Congressman Heck’s office (Keith Hughes) but had not heard back as of today. 

B. Discuss the selection of a Public Works Committee Citizen Co-chair for 2014 and 
take any action deemed appropriate. 

Fred Doten noted that the committee has two co-chairs.  One is a member of 
the LTAB and the second is a member of the committee.  Fred Doten went on 
to say that Shawn Escarzaga was gracious enough to handle this position last 
year.  He asked her if she would be willing to fill this position for this year.  He 
also asked if anyone else would be interested in this job.  Jim Bodley 
interjected with a motion that Shawn Escarzaga be selected as the Citizen Co-
chair of the Committee.  Jon Safranek seconded the motion and it carried 7 to 
0. 

C. Discuss the selection of a Public Works Committee secretary for 2014 and take 
any action deemed appropriate. 

Fred Doten noted that a secretary would be needed for the new year.  Jim 
Bodley interjected that Eric Hoss would be an excellent candidate for this job.  
He then asked Eric Hoss if he would be interested and he said yes.  Jim 
Bodley moved that Eric Hoss be elected as Secretary for the Public Works 
Committee.  Jon Safranek seconded the motion and it carried 7 to 0. 
 

D. Discuss 2014 goals for the Public Works Committee and take any action deemed 
appropriate. 

Fred Doten noted that the mission of the Committee was established in the by-
laws of the LTAB and could not be changed.  The goals for the year can be 
changed annually by the committee.  Fred Doten continued and stated that for 
the past two years the goal of the committee was to help the Clark County 
Public Works do their job in Laughlin.  He noted that the committee acted as 
their eyes and ears in Laughlin and met with them twice a year to discuss 
activities on-going within the community.  Fred Doten stated that he would like 
the goal for this year to remain the same.  Jim Bodley moved that the goal for 
this year to remain as in the past.  Jon Safranek seconded the motion and it 
carried 7 to 0. 
As part of the discussion Jon Safranek mentioned that members as they 
traverse the town look for missing signs, incorrect road markings, street lights 



Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 
 

not operational, etc.  John Pantages asked if this was a scheduled task.  The 
response from members was that it was an individual effort.  As committee 
members drove through the town they noted discrepancies and then reported 
them at the next meeting.  John Pantages responded that in his city they had 
specific areas that people drove through on a monthly basis.  The recorded 
anything out of line and then once they returned to the office wrote up an official 
report.  He noted that it was a couple hours of effort and was very effective in 
recording discrepancies. 
During further discussion there was a question on the duties of the CCPW man 
that is in Laughlin.  No one knew exactly what his function was.  Fred Doten 
stated that he worked for Angelo Santovito and got his instruction from him on 
his daily activities.  Fred Doten stated that when the CCPW group met with us 
he would have as an agenda item a discussion on this job position. 

E. Discuss the proposed Urban Boundaries for the Laughlin area as defined by the 
U.S Census Bureau and in accordance with Federal guidelines and regulations.  
The PWC may take any action deemed appropriate. 

Fred Doten started the discussion by stating that he had gone through the 
documents provided by NDOT.  He said he went through the 50-60 pages of 
print and could not find anything that made sense.  He did say that he felt the 
Urban Boundaries defined areas of population.  He then discussed how the 
Census Bureau looked at the population and then laid out boundaries that 
encompassed the population.  Once these boundaries were established they 
were provided to the State’s Department of Transportation who coordinated with 
the local Town/City.  The local Town/City then revised the boundaries to reflect 
their development plans for the area.  Julie Fairman interjected that she also 
read the documents and concurred that they did not make a lot of sense.  She 
went on to say that her interpretation was that the Urban Boundaries was used 
to define the distribution of road funds.  After additional discussion and a review 
of the map that was used during the LTAB meeting, Fred Doten tabled the 
agenda item.  He stated that he would get back to Gaelen Lamb and discuss 
the purpose of the Urban Boundaries.  He would then call a special committee 
meeting to finalize this action item. 

F. Receive an update on recent traffic studies in Laughlin and recent work orders 
submitted to Public Works and take any action deemed appropriate. 

Fred Doten started this discussion by stating all to turn to the copy of the latest work 
order status 

1. Turn Lane at Sewer Plant:  Fred Doten started this discussion by stating that the 
Safety Committee was going to do a whitepaper on this turn lane.  He went on to 
say that he did not know if this was a fact.  In the mean time this action item would 
remain on the list in case funding became available. 

2. Location of Yield Signs at the Intersection of Bruce Woodbury and Needles 
Highway.  Fred Doten noted that he had talked to Kaizad Yazdani who said that 
the signs would be removed when they restriped Needles Highway.  Jon Safranek 
stated that since they slurry sealed Needles Hwy they have done all the markings, 
etc, but the only thing not done was remove the signs.  Fred Doten noted that at the 



Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 
 

last meeting Joe Yatson stated that when they remarked Needles Highway these 
signs would be removed.  This is the last information available. 

3. Street Sign at Wrong Location on Thomas Edison:  Fred Doten stated that the 
sign was still there.  Marvin Hoggard said he would remove it.  Fred Doten stated 
that this would be a topic of discussion at the next session with the CCPW. 

4. Only Left & Right Turns:  Fred Doten stated that he did not think this would ever 
change.  He was not sure it should remain on this list. 

5. Markings on El Mirage:  Fred Doten noted at the last meeting with CCPW the 
committee was told whenever work was going to be done on the road markings that 
the committee would be informed.  Jon Safranek interjected that the roads in this 
area had just been turned over to the county and the bonds released back to the 
developer.  Jon Safranek continued that the committee was asking that only a 
center line be used and not a two-way turn lane.  Going with a two-way turn lane 
would require additional signage and increase the cost of marking the road. 

6. Missing Sidewalk – Mesquite Lane:  Fred Doten noted that at the meeting with 
CCPW that Joe Yatson stated he would look into this.  Fred Doten stated he had 
not heard from Joe Yatson and suspected that the Developer had a waiver and 
now the County does not want to fund the cost to correct the problem. 

7. Blind Intersection at Canyon Terrace:  Fred Doten noted that he had not been 
able to discuss this with Joe Yatson who said he would look into the possibility of 
revising the County Codes. 

8. Signage Issues at Bruce Woodbury Intersection:  Fred Doten stated that this 
would be reviewed when they restripe the Needles Hwy. 

9. Signage issues at Willow Bay Rd:  Fred Doten said he did not know if CCPW had 
mad the changes or not.  He said he would follow up on this. 

10. Continuous White Lines:  Fred Doten said this would be covered with the new 
contract to reconstruct Thomas Edison. 

11. Inop Street lights:  Fred Doten stated that based on the discussion with CCPW at 
the last meeting that we would mark the street lights that were intermittent with tape.  
He went on to say that he had done this for lights in this condition and provided the 
info to CCPW.  Two days later they fixed all the lights.  Fred Doten remarked that 
he had installed the electrical tape with the sticky side out.  When CCPW fixed the 
lights they removed the tape.  Jim Bodley interjected that he would inform the 
Graffiti group that tape is being installed on light poles with intermittent lights.  This 
way they will not remove the tape. 

Fred Doten stated that in the future he would not be sending anything directly to 
CCPW personnel.  He said that he would direct all info to “Intheworks”.  This way it 
will get into their system and hopefully get better results. 

12. Missing intersection sign:  Fred Doten said that he had gone down to the 
Thomas Edison and taken pictures.  He said he would be sending the pictures into 
CCPW. 

13. Bent Caution Sign:  Fred Doten noted that there was a big yellow sign just north 
of the road to the Bridge trailhead.  It was a warning sign stating that if you vehicle 
was over 17ft that you could not cross under the Riverside covered crosswalk but 
needed to turn right on to Laughlin Civic Drive.  He said that he had pictures of this 



Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 
 

and would be sending it into CCPW 

   

 As the list was complete, Fred Doten asked if there were any new issues that needed 
to be discussed.  The following were discussed. 

1. Jim Bodley brought up the point that the new road into the Chamber of Commerce 
from the Bridge Trailhead road was not marked.  He said that a sign was needed to 
let folks going north on Casino Drive that they needed to turn left at this intersection 
to get to the Chamber of Commerce. 

2. Jim DeWoody brought up the point of Pot Holes at the intersection of Thomas 
Edison and Laughlin Civic Drive.  Fred Doten stated that this section would be fixed 
when they did the reconstruction of Thomas Edison.  He said the request for quote 
had been submitted in January or February and he suspected that the work would 
be done this spring.  He did not believe they would come to Laughlin and repair the 
holes.  Jim DeWoody felt that it would not take much effort to fill in the pot holes.  
John Pantages interjected that using a cold mix would not work as they would pop 
out almost immediately.  He said a hot mix was needed and that even this type mix 
would not last very long. 

 

5. COMMUNITY INPUT/ PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no comments from the general public 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  The next meeting date for the Public Works Committee 
March 18, 2014, 10:00 AM, Laughlin Regional Government Center, 101 Civic Way, 
Laughlin, Nevada.  Agenda items due no later than March 7, 2014. 

6. ADJOURMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 1110 hrs. 

 
NOTE:  These meeting minutes are in draft form and will be formally approved at 

the March 18, 2014 meeting. Any corrections to these minutes will be 
reflected in the minutes of the March 18, 2014 meeting. 

 



Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 Attachment 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   Attachment 2 
 



Public Works Committee 
February 18, 2014 Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
  Attachment 2 
 


